
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, September 19, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Hart 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Proclamation presented to IT Manager Brandon Uselton for IT Professionals Day, September 

20, 2022. 

2. Proclamation presented to Personnel Administrator Rachel Hopkins for Personnel/Human 

Resources Day, September 26, 2022. 

3. Presentation given by Public Works Director Tyler Richards. (PWD) 

4. Presentation given for the Texarkana Water Utilities FY2022-2023 Budget. (TWU) Executive 

Director Gary Smith and TWU Finance Director Tricia Briggs    

5. Presentation given for the FY2023 Airport Budget. (Airport) Airport Director Paul Mehrlich 

CONSENT 

6. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting September 6, 2022.  (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

 



 

REGULAR 

7. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to submit a grant application 

for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding for Nix Creek Water Quality Improvements 

to the Arkansas Natural Resources Commission. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards 

8. Adopt a Resolution to adopt Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY2022-2023 Budget. (TWU) 

Executive Director Gary Smith and TWU Finance Director Tricia Briggs 

9. Adopt a Resolution to adopt the FY2023 Airport Budget. (Airport) Airport Director Paul 

Mehrlich  

10. Adopt an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 26-2022, for the prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application on behalf of David Peavy for the 1923 Banana Club 

located at 105 Olive Street. (CCD) 

An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, October 3, 2022 

ADJOURN 

 

City Calendar 

Street Party - Hopkins Icehouse - Saturday, September 24th - 4PM - 2AM 

GTYP’s Destination Downtown – 201 E. Broad – 323 E. Broad - Friday, September 30th – 

5:30PM – 11PM 

National Night Out - Tuesday, October 4th - 6PM - 9PM 

Texarkana Down Syndrome Society Awareness Walk & Fun Day - Front Street - Saturday, 

October 8th - 8AM - 4PM 

Al Fresco Concert – 1894 Gallery – Friday, October 14th – 5:30PM – 6:30PM 

Food Festival - Bobby Ferguson Park - Saturday, October 15th - 6AM - 10PM 

Dine the Line/Octoberfest - Saturday, October 15th - 10AM - 10PM 

Universal Vibes - Crossties & Front Street - Saturday, October 15th - 10AM - 11PM 

Veterans Day Parade - Saturday, November 12th - 11AM - 1:30PM 



 

Main Street Christmas Parade - Monday, December 5th - 7PM - 9PM 

Partnership for the Pathway - Sunday, February 19th - 7AM - 12:30PM 

 

 

 Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

College 101: Finding Money for College/Trade School –  

Monday, September 26th – 6PM – 7PM 

Taekwondo Self Defense Class –  

 Saturday, September 24th – 10AM – 11AM  

Saturday, October 1st – 10AM – 11AM 

Life Skills and Risk Avoidance – GIRLS 

Monday, September 26th – 5PM – 6PM  

Life Skills and Risk Avoidance – BOYS 

Monday, September 26th – 6PM – 7PM 

Miller/Bowie Health Coalition – Tuesday, September 20th – Noon – 1PM 

AGFC Fishing Tournament – Saturday, September 24th – 6AM – 11PM  

(Gazebo, Lakeside Pavilion, and Small Pavilion)  

Gun Safety and Gun Awareness – Bramble Park – Saturday, September 24th – 7PM – 9PM 

Community Yard Sale – Saturday, October 1st – 8AM – 2PM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Proclamation presented to IT Manager Brandon Uselton for IT 

Professionals Day, September 20, 2022. 

AGENDA DATE: 9/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Proclamation 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: IT Professionals Day 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Proclamation  

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Proclamation presented to Personnel Administrator Rachel Hopkins for 

Personnel/Human Resources Day, September 26, 2022. 

AGENDA DATE: 9/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Proclamation 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Personnel/Human Resources Day 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Proclamation  

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation given by Public Works Director Tyler Richards. (PWD) 

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department  

PREPARED BY: Tyler Richards, Public Works Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: N/A 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS:  

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation given for the Texarkana Water Utilities FY2022-2023 

Budget. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith and TWU Finance 

Director Tricia Briggs    

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities  

PREPARED BY: Executive Director Gary Smith  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: N/A 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: PowerPoint 

 



TWU BUDGET SUMMARY

FY 2023



AR/TX Ratio:

• FY22 38.72/61.28%

• FY23 37.44/62.56%

• Per LTWSC Consumption Summary at 9/30/21-Based on actual pumpage

TX Municipal Retirement System Employer Contributions:

• FY22 16.03%

• Jan 1, 2023 16.70%

• Employees contribute 7% of their gross pay. 

2



FY23 BUDGET FACTORS TO CONSIDER

3

•WP/MW Aluminum Sulfate – 32.78% increase

•WP/MW/SRWWTP Caustic Soda – 93.10% increase

•GP/SRWWTP Liquid Chlorine – 80.90% increase

•SRWWTP Polymer – 49.20% increase 

Chemical Costs:

•TWU salaries are budgeted assuming full employment

•There are no changes to budgeted personnel

Salary Costs:

•Recommend compost product pricing increase of 50%. 

•$223,344 Estimated Revenues for FY23 $83,620-AR and $139,724-TX

• Implement Year 1 of Rate Increases for Water & Sewer approx. 16% 

Revenues:



FY22 BUDGET TO FY23 BUDGET

4

Division FY 22 Budget FY23 Budget Incr (Decr)

110 Administration 629,750 738,833 109,083

210 Accounting/HR 574,149 558,236 (15,913)

230 IT 1,231,906 1,125,931 (105,975)

310 Customer Service 998,267 1,039,399 41,132

330 Field Services 762,271 755,999 (6,272)

410 Water Prod-WP 3,805,817 4,557,643 751,826

420 Water Prod-MW 1,669,186 1,865,106 195,920

490 GP Water 1,735,416 2,078,274 342,858

520 Waggoner Creek 426,529 439,414 12,885

530 SRWWTP 4,314,336 4,552,934 238,598

540 NTWWTP 286,607 284,299 (2,308)

580 Composting 356,176 356,490 314

610 Ops Admin 268,691 293,135 24,444

612 Water/Sewer Constr 1,138,797 1,144,980 6,183

620 Water Distr 1,532,995 1,512,924 (20,071)

630 Sewer Collection 1,264,961 1,240,118 (24,843)

640 Fleet Services 624,143 656,713 32,570

710 Engineering 722,470 780,675 58,205

720 Engineering I&I 287,265 289,878 2,613

740 GIS Development 411,172 402,416 (8,756)

750 Environmental Svcs 436,675 433,024 (3,651)

830/831 Leary 25,396 31,583 6,187

833/834 Miller Cty PWA 27,941 34,282 6,341

Total 23,530,916 25,172,286 1,641,370

OPERATING DIVISION BUDGET COMPARISONS-ALL FUNDS

Net budget increase from FY22 to FY23

7.00%

Budget Variance Notes can be found on        
page 63 of TWU Budget Document



FY22 BUDGET TO FY23 BUDGET

5

Division FY22 Budget FY23 Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

110 Administration 235,482 277,541 42,059

210 Accounting/HR 205,811 204,796 (1,015)

230 IT 407,410 356,459 (50,951)

310 Customer Service 353,272 369,701 16,429

330 Field Services 280,389 268,896 (11,493)

420 Water Prod-MW 1,669,186 1,865,106 195,920

530 SRWWTP 1,671,769 1,706,311 34,542

540 NTWWTP 275,607 273,299 (2,308)

580 Composting 137,911 133,470 (4,441)

610 Ops Admin 104,038 109,749 5,711

612 Water/Sewer Const 440,942 428,681 (12,261)

620 Water Distr 585,290 558,720 (26,570)

630 Sewer Collection 488,245 463,177 (25,068)

640 Fleet Services 219,134 224,716 5,582

643 AR Police Veh 26,250 18,950 (7,300)

644 AR Fire Veh 28,250 47,000 18,750

645 AR PW Veh 45,600 60,350 14,750

646 AR Other Veh 6,600 6,600 0

710 Engineering 279,779 292,284 12,505

720 Engineering I&I 111,228 108,530 (2,698)

740 GIS Development 159,137 150,274 (8,863)

750 Environmental Svcs 169,080 162,125 (6,955)

833/834 Miller Cty PWA 27,941 34,282 6,341

Total 7,928,351 8,121,017 192,666

OPERATING DIVISION BUDGET COMPARISONS AR FUND ONLY EXCLUDES MN/UN

Arkansas Fund FY23 
Net Budget increase from FY22 to FY23

2.43%



Brief Overview 
of Revenues & 
Expenditures-
All Funds

6



Brief Overview 
of Revenues & 
Expenditures-
AR, MN & UN

7



8

$37,035,864

$1,099,755

$4,552,412

FY23 Revenues-All Funds AR, TX, GP, MN & UN

Sales/Fees Misc. Income Other Income

87% Sales
11% Misc. Income
2% Other Income

Total Proposed Revenues $42,688,031



9

$26,961,071

$1,971,851

$13,388,883

FY23 Expenditures-All Funds AR, TX, GP, MN & UN

Operating Budgets Debt Other Expense

64% Operating Budgets
5% Debt
31% Other Expense

Total Proposed Expenditures $42,321,805



What percentage of revenues is required to fund the proposed Operating Budgets for TWU?

54% of Revenue is needed to fund FY23 Operating Budgets-$23,055,580

$12,871,066 for Personal Services 30%
$3,742,489 for Supplies 9%
$2,325,593 for Repairs & Maintenance 5%
$4,116,432 for Contractual Services 10% 

Personal Services-includes wages, retirement, social security, and group insurance

Supplies-includes uniforms, safety and operating supplies and chemicals for water & sewer plants

Repairs & Maintenance-includes fuel and parts for fleet & equipment as well as building & machinery 
maintenance for water & sewer plants.

Contractual Services-includes utility bills, insurance premiums, garbage hauling, water rights, postage, 
maintenance contracts & audit fees. 

FY23 Estimated Revenues $42,688,031

**Operating Budgets for departments GP-490, Leary-830 and MCPWA-833 have been excluded from the total O & M number 
because they pay their own expenses. 

10



11

FY22 Budget Revised Ending Cash 
Balances:
AR $916,591   30 days

MNDVL -$17,864 0 days

UN $144,221 110 days

FY23 Budget Projected Ending Cash 
Balances:
AR $1,897,168 55 days

MNDVL $45,849 166 days

UN $205,316 147 days



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation given for the FY2023 Airport Budget. (Airport) Airport 

Director Paul Mehrlich 

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Airport  

PREPARED BY: Paul Mehrlich, Airport Director   

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: N/A 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: PowerPoint  

 



Budget Workshop
13th September 2022

Authority Chairman



Expected Net Loss- $(680,849)

Expected Revenue - $1,204,045

Expected Expense - $1,884,894

2023 Budget

TX - $375,761       AR - $305,088

Additional Capital Investment - $2,376,730
TX - $1,383,387    AR - $993,343



EOC – Was - $0 / New - $33,075

Hangar – Was - $79,920 / New - $151,200

Houses – Was - $24,600 / New - $67,200

Revenue Increases

Mini Storage – Was - $2,400 / New - $18,251

A&P School – Was - $8,000 / New - $44,000
Total Revenue Increases – $198,806



Debt Service – Line of  Credit 

9.4% Consumer Price Index increase July 21 – July 22

33.2% Increase on Energy

Increased Costs

Salary Study conducted by TX side

Economic Development Conferences

Repairs and upgrades to T-Hangars

Equipment to perform repairs in house

Marketing



Apron - $8,245,325 

Terminal - $15,670,600 

Parking - $3,686,627

Terminal Construction Expenses – 2019

Total – $27,602,552      Local - $3,878,220

TX – $2,123,713 AR- $1,754,506 



Parking - $10,555,819

Terminal - $23,703,198 

Non-FAA Funded Terminal - $1,144,267

Terminal Construction Expenses – 2022

Apron - $14,485,309

Total - $49,888,523    Local - $8,602,614
TX – $1,383,387 AR- $993,343 



Airport Rescue Grant - $1,216,905

CARES Act - $1,154,703

Airport Coronavirus Response Grant - $1,020,766

Three Stimulus Packages

Total Stimulus - $3,392,374

$2,643,364 of  which has gone to terminal

$238,721 went to cover loss on 20, 21 budget



Expected Net Loss- $(1,399,865)

Expected Revenue - $1,280,597

Expected Expense - $2,654,462

Estimated 2024 Budget

TX - $772,586       AR - $627,280



Debt Service – Line of  Credit 

Elevators, Escalators, Jet Bridges, HVAC maintenance

Terminal Utility Costs

Increased/New Costs

TSA mandated security staff

Janitorial for Terminal

Landscaping for Terminal

Access control security system

Airfield Compliance Maintenance



2023 budget $45,000

38,016 feet of  fencing – must be cleared 6’ either side

$30 linear foot - $1,140,480 – ($190,080 / YR)

Compliance Items

175,000 SF of  airfield markings  

6 year cycle

2023 budget $5,000

$3.60 per SF to repaint - $630,000 – ($105,000 / YR)   





50/50 - $200,000 – Match $200,000 – total $400,000

90/10 - $150,000 – Match $16,666 – total $166,666

80/20 - $250,000 – Match $62,500 – total $312,500

ADA Grants

$879,166 - $1,066,666 of  annual investment for only 
$279,166 - $316,666
$125,094 - $141,898 AR match 

*80/20 - $400,000 – Match $100,000 – total $500,000

Can’t be used to cover annual maintenance costs



Questions?



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting September 

6, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: September 19, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, September 06, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Assistant Mayor Ward 3 Steven Hollibush, Ward 5 Director Barbara Miner and Ward 6 Director 

Jeff Hart. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, and Deputy 

City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

ABSENT:  Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer and City Clerk Heather Soyars 

Invocation given by Director Miner. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Interim Police Chief Bobby Jordan. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Lane Rogers, Chubby Cheeks Liquor, said he needed help with the homeless people behind the 

liquor store and Lane’s Gifts.  He said the hotel on the other side of Chubby Cheeks was a problem 

also due to the “women of the night”.  Mr. Rogers asked if the City could get the property owner 

on the other side of Lane’s Gifts to mow the vacant lot.           

Allen Rogers, Lane’s Gifts, said the lot next to Lane’s Gifts had grown up so much there were 

homeless people living there.  He asked the City for help to get the homeless people away from 

his location and to mow the vacant lot.   

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN) City 

Manager E. Jay Ellington  

 

Patrick Franks TWU 5 Years 

Kenneth Icenhower TWU 5 Years 

Dale Thornton TAPD 5 Years 

 

*Director Miner left the Board Room at 6:12PM.* 



 

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Roberts.  The 

motion carried and the following items were approved:  

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting August 15, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

3. Resolution No. 2022-54 rescheduled Board of Directors meetings in 2023 that conflict with 

certain holidays. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

4. Resolution No. 2022-55 approved the reimbursement of $29,210.30 to the Texarkana 

Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson 

5. Resolution No. 2022-56 allowed the Airport Authority to donate the Air Force RADOME to 

the Air Force Radar Museum. (Airport) Airport Director Paul Mehrlich 

6. Resolution No. 2022-57 appointed PeTree Banks to the Texarkana, Arkansas Public 

Employee Retirement System (TAPERS). (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

7. Resolution No. 2022-58 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract for the East 28th 

Street – County Avenue to Hickory Street Proposed 6” Water Main Project. (Ward 4) (TWU) 

Executive Director Gary Smith 

 

*Director Miner returned to the Board Room at 6:14PM.* 

REGULAR 

8. Resolution No. 2022-59 accepted the year end 2021 Audit Report. (FIN) Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Roberts, Seconded 

by Assistant Mayor Hollibush.   

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

9. Ordinance No. 27-2022 rezoned a tract of land located at 3014 Linn Ferry Road from R-1 

Rural residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning in order to build an event center with cabins 

on a 31-acre parcel that was also a residence. (Ward 1) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary 

Beck 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Hart said he wanted to make citizens aware of people walking and riding bicycles in the 

middle of the road on Realtor Road.   

Director Harris said he would like to meet the final candidates for the new Police Chief before 

hiring.  He asked if the City would be installing charging stations for electric cars and if so, maybe 

the City could partner with EZ-Mart to house the stations.  Director Harris said he would like to 

hold off on any renaming of property until after the election.  He asked if the Arkansas-side would 

be able to sale alcohol on Sunday.    

Mayor Brown said there would be a workshop Tuesday, September 13, 2022, at 5:00PM for the 

Texarkana Water Utilities and the Airport Budgets.  He said there would be an executive session 

at the next meeting to discuss the City Manager.    

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 

He stated there would be a presentation given by the Public Works Director Tyler Richards at the 

next meeting.   



 

He said there was a redistricting workshop, and he would take any recommendation from the 

Board on which direction they would like to move forward.   

He mentioned the National Night Out would be October 4, 2022. 

He noted this fall the contracts with the refuse haulers would be brought before the Board. 

He said the budget process had already begun. 

He announced Kenny Icenhower was named the Assistant Director for Texarkana Water 

Utilities.   

He also said to keep on eye on the City calendar, the Rec Center had several events going on.   

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, September 19, 2022 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Miner, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 6:45 PM. 

APPROVED this the 19th day of September 2022. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to submit 

a grant application for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding for 

Nix Creek Water Quality Improvements to the Arkansas Natural 

Resources  

Commission. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To submit a grant application for ARPA Funding for Nix Creek Water 

Quality Improvements to the Arkansas Natural Resources  

Commission. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The City proposes to submit a grant application for ARPA Funding for 

Nix Creek Water Quality Improvements in the amount of $3,000,000.00 

to the Arkansas Natural Resources Commission.   This application 

mirrors the 5-Year Plan put together for Nix Creek and project fund 

request is 100% ARPA funds. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Example Resolution and Water/Wastewater Survey Needs. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AND AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR AND MANAGER OF THE TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS SYSTEM 

TO EXECUTE CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH 

FUNDING ADMINISTERED BY THE ARKANSAS NATURAL RESOURCES COMMISSION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas owns and operates a drainage system (the "System") in 

order to provide drainage service to meet the needs of the City and its inhabitants; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City and its inhabitants 

to apply for assistance from the Arkansas Natural Resources Commission (the “ANRC”), in order 

to make certain improvements to the System; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

 

Section 1. That the Mayor of the City, as a Signatory Agent or the successor of said Agent, is hereby 

authorized and directed to make application for assistance administered by the ANRC and to 

execute, when approved by the City Council, a bond purchase agreement and instruments issued 

or made pursuant thereto on behalf of the City from time to time. 

 

Section 2. That the Manager of the System, as a Signatory Agent or the successor of said Agent, is 

hereby authorized to execute, for and on behalf of the City, all other documents and certificates 

required. 

 

PASSED:  ________________, 20__ 

 

    APPROVED: 

 

   ____________________ 

Attest:          Mayor 

 

_____________________ 

 

     City Clerk 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 

MANAGER OF THE TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, 

SYSTEM TO EXECUTE CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 

IN CONNECTION WITH FUNDING 

ADMINISTERED BY THE ARKANSAS 

NATURAL RESOURCES COMMISSION 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, owns and operates a drainage 

system (the "System"), in order to provide drainage service to meet the needs of the City 

and its inhabitants; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have determined that it is in the best interest 

of the City and its inhabitants to apply for assistance from the Arkansas Natural Resources 

Commission (the “ANRC”), in order to make certain improvements to the System; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

 Section 1. That the Mayor of the City, as a Signatory Agent or the successor of 

said Agent, is hereby authorized and directed to make application for assistance 

administered by the ANRC and to execute, when approved by the Board of Directors, a 

bond purchase agreement and instruments issued or made pursuant thereto on behalf of the 

City from time to time. 

 Section 2. That the Manager of the System, as a Signatory Agent or the 

successor of said Agent, is hereby authorized to execute, for and on behalf of the City, all 

other documents and certificates required. 

 



PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of September, 2022. 

 

 

      

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

      

George Matteson, City Attorney  







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to adopt Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY2022-

2023 Budget. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith and TWU Finance 

Director Tricia Briggs 

AGENDA DATE: September 19, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: TWU Finance Director Tricia Briggs 

REQUEST: Adoption of budget. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY:  

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and utility staff recommend Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: TWU FY2022-2023 Budget and Resolution 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, the FY2022-2023 Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) Budget has been 

submitted to the Board of Directors for review; and   

 WHEREAS, Utility staff recommends approval of the budget as presented to the 

Board with the income and expense allocations set forth therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the TWU Budget for FY2022-2023, attached hereto and made 

a part hereof, is hereby approved.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of September, 2022. 

 

 

 

      

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

       

George Matteson, City Attorney 





TABLE OF CONTENTS 

GLOSSARY OF KEY BUDGET ITEMS 

SECTION I - REVENUE FUNDS 
Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary (AR, TX, MN & UN Funds) …………………….. 1 
Combined Revenue Funds …………………………………………………………………. 2 
Texas Revenue Combined (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………... 4 
Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary (TX Fund – G.P. is excluded) ………………….  6 
Texas Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………………. 7 
G.P. Water Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………. 9 
Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary (AR, MN & UN Funds) …………………………. 10 
Combined Arkansas, Mandeville, Union (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ………………. 11 
Arkansas Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) …………………………… 13 
Mandeville Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………… 15 
Union Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………………. 16 

SECTION II - BOND FUNDS 
Arkansas 2001 Bond Fund …………………………………………………………….. 17 
Arkansas 2004-A Bond Fund …………………………………………………………………  18 
Arkansas 2004-B Bond Fund (AR, MNDVL & UN) ……………………………………….. 19 
Arkansas 2007 Refunding Bond Fund …………………………………………………….. 20 
Arkansas 2007 Bond Reserve Fund ………………………………………………………… 21 
Texas 2013 Bond Fund …………………………………………………………………….. 22 
Texas 2020 Refunding Bond Fund ………………………………………………………….  23 
Texas Bond Reserve Fund ………………………………………………………………….. 24 

SECTION Ill - CAPITAL FUNDS 
Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund ………………………………………………………. 25 
Arkansas Infrastructure Fund ………………………………………………………………… 26 
Arkansas Millwood Water Rights Fund ……………………………………………………. 27 
Arkansas Personnel Policy Fund …………………………………………………………… 28 
Millwood WTP Depreciation Fund ………………………………………………………….. 29 
North Texarkana WWTP Depreciation Fund ……………………………………………….. 30 
Mandeville Depreciation Fund ……………………………………………………………… 31 
Union Depreciation Fund ………………………………………………………………………  32 
Texas Capital Improvement Fund …………………………………………………. 33 
Texas Infrastructure Fund …………………………………………………………………… 34 
Wright Patman COE Cost Fund …………………………………………………………….. 35 
Texas 2013 Bond Construction Fund ……………………………………………………… 36 
Texas Personnel Policy Fund ………………………………………………………….. 37 
Waggoner Creek Capital Improvement Fund …………………………………………… 38 
LTWSC Capital Improvement Fund ……………………………………………………….. 39 
South Regional WWTP Depreciation Fund …………………………………………… 41 
Composting Fund ………………………………………………………………………………  42 
Equipment Acquisition Fund ……………………………………………………………….. 44-53 
Technology Fund ……………………………………………………………………………. 54-62 



SECTION IV - OPERATING BUDGETS 
TWU Operating Budget Comparison with Variance Explanations (All Funds)………………. 63 
2023 Budgeted O&M Expenditures All Fund………………………………………………. 64 
TWU Organization Chart ……………………………………………………………………. 65 
Administration – 110 ………………………………………………………………………… 66 
Accounting – 210 ……………………………………………………………………………. 69 
Information Technology – 230 …………………………………………………………….. 72 
Customer Service – 310 ……………………………………………………………………. 75 
Field Services - 330 …………………………………………………………………………. 78 
Wright Patman Water Treatment Plant – 410 …………………………………………… 81 
Millwood Water Treatment Plant – 420 …………………………………………………… 85 
Water Distribution - Graphic Packaging (formerly International Paper) – 490 ………… 88 
Waggoner Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 520 ……………………………………. 91 
South Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant – 530 ………………………………… 94 
North Texarkana Wastewater Treatment Plant – 540 ……………………………… 97 
Composting – 580 …………………………………………………………………………… 100 
Field Operations/Administration – 610 ………………………………………………… 103 
Water/Sewer Construction – 612 ………………………………………………………….. 106 
Water Distribution – 620 ………………………………………………………………… 109 
Sewer Collection – 630 …………………………………………………………………. 112 
Fleet Services Center – 640 ……………………………………………………………….. 115 
Engineering Design – 710 ……………………………………………………………… 118 
Engineering - Infiltration & Inflow Abatement – 720 ………………………………… 122 
GIS Development- 740 ……………………………………………………………………… 125 
Environmental Services – 750 ………………………………………………………… 128 
Leary - 830/831 ………………………………………………………………………………. 132 
Miller County Public Water Authority - 833/834 …………………………………………. 137 
 
SECTION V - DEBT SERVICES 
Combined Arkansas and Texas 
All Revenue Bonds ………………………………………………………………………….. 143 
Arkansas Revenue Bonds 
All Revenue Bonds ……………………………………………………………………… 144 
2001 Sewer Facilities Construction Revenue Bonds ……………………………….. 145 
2004-A Water Facilities Acquisition Revenue Bond ……………………………………. 146 
2004-B Water Facilities Improvement Revenue Bond ……………………………… 147 
2007 Waterworks Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds …………………………… 148 
Texas Revenue Bonds 
All Revenue Bonds ………………………………………………………………………….. 149 
2013 Waterworks & Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds ……………………. 150 
2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds ……………………………………………… 151 
 
 
 
 

11 



I 

I 

GLOSSARY OF KEY BUDGET ITEMS 

AR 

COE 

DS 

FH 

GIS 

GP 

GPS 

LTWSC 

MC 

MCPWA 

MGD 

MH 

MN 

MW 

NT 

SCADA 

SR 

TCEQ 

TML 

TWU 

TX 

UN 

UV 

WC 

WP 

WTP 

WWTP 

Arkansas 

Cu, !JS of Engineers 

Debt Service 

Fire Hydrant 

II Geographic Information Systems

Graphic Packaging 

Global Position System 

Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation 

Member Cities 

II Miller County Public Water Authority

Million Gallons per Day 

Manhole 

Mandeville 

Millwood 

North Texarkana 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 

South Regional 

Texas Commission of Environmental Quality 

Texas Municipal League (insurance carrier for TWU) 

Texarkana Water Utilities 

Texas 

Union 

Ultra-Violet 

I Waggoner Creek 

I Wright Patman 

Water Treatment Plant 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

I 





1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to adopt the FY2023 Airport Budget. (Airport) 

Airport Director Paul Mehrlich 

AGENDA DATE: 09/19/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Airport 

PREPARED BY: Paul Mehrlich, Airport Director  

REQUEST: Approve the FY2023 Airport Budget. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Annual Airport Budget for FY2023.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $305,088 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $305,088 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, FY2023 Airport Budget, and Briefing Sheet  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, the FY2023 Airport Budget has been submitted to the Board of 

Directors for review; and   

 WHEREAS, Airport staff recommends approval of the budget as presented to the 

Board with the income and expense allocations set forth therein, the Texarkana, Arkansas, 

portion which equals $305,088.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Airport staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Airport Budget for FY2023, attached hereto and made a 

part hereof, is hereby approved.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of September, 2022. 

 

 

 

      

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

       

George Matteson, City Attorney 



Updates/History of Briefing: 

 

 

Executive Summary and Background Information:  

Approve the Airport Budget for Fiscal Year 2023. 

 Potential Options: 

 Approve 

 Deny 

 

Fiscal Implications: 

$375,761 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends for approval.  

Advisory Board/Committee Review:  

 

Board/Committee Recommendation:   

NA 

Advisory Board/Committee Meeting Date and Minutes:   

NA 



2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2022 Budget TTM 21-22 2023 Budget

Income

40000 · Revenues

40001 · Small Building Revenue 9,000$                    11,943$                  11,000$                  8,835$                       43,500$                      9,750$                    42,825$                      23,821$                      42,825$                  

40002 · FBO Revenue 102,000$                104,240$                102,000$                102,586$                   104,000$                    104,353$                115,000$                    104,353$                    116,150$                

40003 · Ground Revenue/Aircraft Sto Fee 25,500$                  24,317$                  25,500$                  25,799$                     25,000$                      42,233$                  48,400$                      33,888$                      48,400$                  

40004 · Hangar Revenue 95,000$                  99,607$                  95,750$                  101,367$                   98,000$                      106,992$                145,200$                    127,579$                    163,200$                

40005 · House Revenue 25,000$                  24,600$                  24,300$                  42,500$                     28,000$                      47,100$                  57,600$                      51,225$                      57,600$                  

40006 · Fuel Flowage Revenue 62,000$                  53,832$                  62,000$                  40,297$                     50,000$                      46,372$                  50,000$                      51,319$                      51,000$                  

40007 · Interest/Late Charge Revenue 500$                       -$                           500$                       -$                           -$                                -$                                -$                           

40008 · Landing Fees Revenue 40,000$                  46,030$                  40,000$                  36,010$                     48,000$                      65,065$                  56,000$                      70,785$                      56,000$                  

40009 · Misc. Revenue - Other 5,000$                    5,970$                    5,000$                    3,501$                       4,000$                        58,099$                  5,000$                        24,002$                      5,000$                    

40010 · Parking Revenue 255,000$                312,960$                275,000$                110,523$                   275,000$                    217,759$                190,000$                    277,002$                    260,000$                

40011 · Airline Office Revenue 35,370$                  35,370$                  35,370$                  35,370$                     35,370$                      35,370$                  35,370$                      35,370$                      35,370$                  

40012 · Rental Car Revenue 250,000$                242,003$                250,000$                224,130$                   225,000$                    278,669$                234,000$                    289,193$                    250,000$                

40013 · TSA Building Rents - Other 54,000$                  50,794$                  54,000$                  50,910$                     50,000$                      51,111$                  50,000$                      51,301$                      50,000$                  

40015 · Fuel Tax Income 35,000$                  39,545$                  37,000$                  28,076$                     35,000$                      33,566$                  30,000$                      44,754$                      32,000$                  

40016 · Cities Subsidy 128,580$                144,822$                   274,382$                -$                           

40017 · Advertising Revenue 4,000$                    6,312$                    4,000$                    12,896$                     4,000$                        5,001$                    12,000$                      4,193$                        6,500$                    

40018 · Mooring Fee -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           -$                                -$                                -$                           

40019 · LEO Grant Reimbursement 41,000$                  43,800$                  39,000$                  32,200$                     39,000$                      38,720$                  -$                                49,760$                      -$                           

40020 · Miller County Tax Passthru 25,000$                  25,430$                  25,000$                  25,430$                     25,000$                      27,885$                  26,000$                      30,010$                      26,000$                  

40021 · Freight Loading Charges -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           -$                                -$                                -$                           

40022 · Building Utilities -$                            3,913$                    -$                            4,748$                       4,000$                        3,122$                    4,000$                        2,016$                        4,000$                    

Total 40000 · Revenues 1,063,370$             1,259,245$             1,085,420$             1,030,000$                1,092,870$                 1,445,549$             1,101,395$                 1,270,571$                 1,204,045$             

Expense

50000 · Administration Expense

50001 · Advertising & Promotion 2,000$                    6,959$                    2,000$                    2,811$                       14,000$                      20,971$                  14,000$                      37,091$                      100,000$                75000 -website

50002 · Drug Testing 350$                       168$                       350$                       653$                          600$                           504$                       400$                           336$                           400$                       

50003 · Dues & Subscriptions 3,500$                    5,120$                    5,000$                    6,098$                       5,000$                        7,033$                    6,200$                        7,481$                        7,500$                    

50004 · Employee Training-Other 3,000$                    7,415$                    5,000$                    3,395$                       3,000$                        2,350$                    4,000$                        3,245$                        2,000$                    

50005 · Interest Expense/Debt Service 8,000$                    5,050$                    3,500$                    15,269$                     8,000$                        37,975$                  8,000$                        37,738$                      60,000$                  Debt Service on Line of Credit

50006 · Legal & Accounting Expense 14,000$                  21,942$                  20,000$                  13,674$                     20,000$                      31,883$                  50,000$                      26,529$                      30,000$                  

50008 · Mileage 5,000$                    2,483$                    4,000$                    1,030$                       2,500$                        335$                       2,500$                        455$                           1,000$                    

50009 · Office Support 7,000$                    6,261$                    7,000$                    5,629$                       7,000$                        8,840$                    7,000$                        9,302$                        7,000$                    

50010 · Miscellaneous 10,000$                  16,518$                  10,000$                  8,879$                       10,000$                      4,301$                    10,000$                      3,143$                        8,000$                    

50011 · Parking Expense 4,000$                    1,284$                    2,000$                    6,836$                       1,300$                        3,007$                    6,000$                        1,021$                        5,000$                    

50012 · Service Charges 5,500$                    12,901$                  10,000$                  6,588$                       12,000$                      9,802$                    12,000$                      11,754$                      10,000$                  

50013 · Travel & Training Seminars 4,000$                    2,918$                    4,000$                    3,559$                       3,000$                        6,822$                    3,000$                        11,435$                      11,000$                  NBAA / MRO Americas

50014 · Consulting Fees -$                            -$                           500$                       3,640$                       6,000$                        4,000$                    6,000$                        -$                                4,000$                    

50015 · FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 1,000$                    371$                       1,000$                    1,178$                       1,000$                        -$                       1,000$                        -$                                1,000$                    

50022 · Depredation -$                            3,152$                    -$                            925$                          500$                           200$                       1,000$                        -$                                500$                       

50023 · Terminal Vending -$                            2,847$                       -$                                1,089$                    2,500$                        880$                           1,000$                    

Total 50000 · Administration Expense 67,350$                  92,542$                  74,350$                  83,011$                     93,900$                      139,111$                133,600$                    150,410$                    248,400$                

50100 · Liability Insurance Expense

50101 · APERMA 32,000$                  32,000$                  32,000$                  14,560$                     -$                                -$                                -$                           

50102 · Airport Liability Ins. Other 6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    8,300$                       8,000$                        8,300$                    8,400$                        8,300$                        8,400$                    

50103 · Property/Auto Ins -$                            46,878$                     50,000$                      48,350$                  50,000$                      53,393$                      50,000$                  

Total 50100 · Liability Insurance Expense 38,000$                  38,000$                  38,000$                  69,738$                     58,000$                      56,650$                  58,400$                      61,693$                      58,400$                  

50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense

50202 · Airside Components 20,000$                  19,419$                  14,000$                  5,421$                       20,000$                      16,970$                  20,000$                      20,759$                      10,000$                  

50203 · Buildings 25,000$                  16,781$                  25,000$                  28,517$                     25,000$                      22,482$                  25,000$                      32,190$                      30,000$                  

50204 · Airfield Lighting -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           -$                                -$                       -$                                4$                               10,000$                  Seperated lighting from components

50205 · Gates / Fences 7,000$                    2,933$                    7,000$                    5,906$                       15,000$                      4,958$                    15,000$                      9,742$                        45,000$                  Repair security fencing around airport - 30k

50206 · Houses 10,000$                  38,425$                  10,000$                  5,833$                       15,000$                      16,692$                  15,000$                      16,140$                      10,000$                  

50207 · Misc. 1,000$                    808$                       1,000$                    183$                          1,000$                        1,537$                    1,000$                        819$                           1,000$                    

50208 · T-Hangars 6,500$                    1,781$                    6,500$                    10,619$                     36,000$                      21,133$                  36,000$                      40,859$                      51,400$                  Upgrades to T-Hangars - 41.4k

50209 · Tools 1,000$                    2,315$                    1,000$                    1,121$                       1,000$                        4,578$                    1,000$                        4,328$                        19,500$                  Crack sealer, painter $18,500

50210 · Tractors, Mules, Forklift etc. 12,000$                  11,201$                  12,000$                  4,903$                       12,000$                      6,648$                    12,000$                      17,047$                      12,000$                  

50211 · Vehicles & Trailers 3,000$                    1,400$                    3,500$                    1,543$                       3,000$                        8,422$                    3,000$                        10,929$                      4,000$                    

50212 · Environmental 1,000$                    75$                         500$                       233$                          500$                           8,564$                    500$                           8,311$                        500$                       

50213 · Snow & Ice Removal/ Flood Damage 2,500$                    -$                           2,500$                    -$                           2,500$                        6,890$                    2,500$                        -$                                2,000$                    

50214 - FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 2,958$                    5,867$                        4,000$                    

Total 50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense 89,000$                  95,138$                  83,000$                  64,279$                     131,000$                    121,830$                131,000$                    166,995$                    199,400$                

50300 · Landside Consumables Expense

50301 · Fuel 11,000$                  6,299$                    10,000$                  4,842$                       10,000$                      8,840$                    8,000$                        8,998$                        8,000$                    

50302 · Janitorial Supplies 4,700$                    4,921$                    4,700$                    4,084$                       5,000$                        4,099$                    5,000$                        4,407$                        5,000$                    

50303 · Landscaping 3,000$                    -$                           2,000$                    -$                           3,000$                        1,290$                    1,000$                        36$                             1,000$                    

50304 · Maint. Shop Supplies 3,000$                    1,613$                    2,000$                    2,299$                       2,000$                        2,540$                    2,000$                        3,110$                        2,000$                    

50305 · Rental Expense 1,200$                    457$                       1,200$                    244$                          1,200$                        570$                       1,200$                        264$                           1,000$                    

50306 · Uniforms 1,600$                    2,275$                    1,600$                    1,467$                       1,600$                        1,867$                    1,400$                        1,020$                        1,200$                    

Total 50300 · Landside Consumables Expense 24,500$                  15,565$                  21,500$                  12,936$                     22,800$                      19,205$                  18,600$                      17,835$                      18,200$                  

50400 · Payroll Expenses

50401 · AR Unemployment Tax (ALL) 4,000$                    5,855$                    4,000$                    988$                          4,000$                        512$                       4,000$                        (332)$                          4,000$                    

50402 · Admin. Group Insurance 50,000$                  46,305$                  48,000$                  37,177$                     50,000$                      44,475$                  50,000$                      47,234$                      50,000$                  

50403 · Payroll Taxes (ALL) 46,500$                  50,659$                  46,500$                  44,258$                     46,500$                      50,755$                  48,360$                      55,410$                      60,317$                  Payscale study 

50404 · APERS Retirement 3,600$                    4,249$                    4,000$                    5,696$                       4,300$                        5,893$                    47,000$                      45,472$                      72,864$                  Payscale study 

50405 · Admin. Payroll 386,000$                371,540$                386,000$                328,118$                   360,000$                    369,628$                401,440$                    419,658$                    475,615$                Payscale study 

50406 · Admin. Workers Comp. 3,500$                    2,342$                    5,000$                    2,342$                       5,000$                        2,498$                    5,000$                        2,263$                        5,000$                    

50408 · Vacation & Sick Leave 39,378$                  27,430$                     -$                                35,795$                  -$                                26,888$                      -$                           

50409 · Other (ALL) 800$                       604$                       300$                       342$                          300$                           116$                       300$                           926$                           300$                       

50411 · Accrued Payroll 8,500$                    -$                           10,000$                  -$                           10,000$                      10,000$                      -$                                8,500$                    

50413 · Admin. Longevity 9,120$                    11,000$                  7,520$                       8,000$                        8,800$                    9,000$                        8,800$                        10,560$                  

50415 · ADA Employee Agreement -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           -$                                -$                                -$                                -$                           

50400 · Admin Payroll Expenses Other -$                           100$                       -$                           100$                           100$                           -$                                100$                       

Total 50400 · Payroll Expenses 502,900$                530,052$                514,900$                453,871$                   488,200$                    518,471$                575,200$                    606,319$                    687,256$                

50500 · Permits & Taxes

50501 · Miller County Taxes 32,000$                  37,375$                  12,000$                  37,643$                     12,000$                      39,310$                  38,000$                      42,116$                      40,000$                  

50502 · Sales Tax 25,000$                  31,437$                  30,000$                  11,106$                     27,500$                      19,485$                  27,500$                      27,828$                      27,500$                  

50503 · Permits & Taxes -Other -$                            720$                       100$                       700$                          700$                           700$                       725$                           700$                           725$                       

Total 50500 · Permits & Taxes 57,000$                  69,532$                  42,100$                  49,449$                     40,200$                      59,495$                  66,225$                      70,644$                      68,225$                  

50600 · Utilities

50602 · Communications 26,000$                  37,969$                  18,000$                  26,883$                     25,000$                      34,977$                  25,000$                      34,650$                      34,000$                  

50603 · Electricity 62,000$                  62,712$                  65,000$                  72,592$                     65,000$                      77,547$                  65,000$                      83,724$                      75,000$                  Utilities Cost Increases

50604 · Gas 4,000$                    3,620$                    4,000$                    3,273$                       4,000$                        3,416$                    3,500$                        4,759$                        3,500$                    

50605 · Water 10,000$                  16,369$                  10,000$                  15,051$                     16,000$                      16,873$                  12,000$                      16,232$                      16,000$                  Utilities Cost Increases

Total 50600 · Utilities 102,000$                120,670$                97,000$                  117,799$                   110,000$                    132,813$                105,500$                    139,365$                    128,500$                

50700 · ARFF Expenses

50702 · ARFF Office Support 500$                       63$                         300$                       248$                          300$                           218$                       300$                           867$                           300$                       

50703 · ARFF Communications 2,000$                    3,680$                    2,000$                    1,765$                       2,000$                        2,014$                    2,000$                        2,101$                        1,800$                    

50704 · ARFF Fuel 3,000$                    3,465$                    3,000$                    2,962$                       3,000$                        1,350$                    3,000$                        3,449$                        2,500$                    

50705 · ARFF Group Insurance 23,000$                  36,504$                  32,500$                  36,005$                     36,000$                      44,097$                  36,000$                      43,174$                      42,000$                  

50706 · ARFF Mileage 500$                       821$                       1,000$                    987$                          1,000$                        663$                       1,000$                        787$                           1,000$                    

50707 · ARFF Payroll 147,000$                165,034$                162,000$                160,446$                   170,000$                    177,173$                175,294$                    183,842$                    197,553$                Payscale study 

50708 · ARFF APERS Retirement 2,400$                    4,208$                    3,800$                    3,763$                       4,000$                        3,678$                    24,000$                      2,122$                        30,265$                  Payscale study 

50709 · ARFF Supplies 4,000$                    4,412$                    1,500$                    1,748$                       4,000$                        3,273$                    4,000$                        2,363$                        3,400$                    

50710 · ARFF Tools & Equipment 2,000$                    226$                       2,000$                    1,033$                       2,000$                        212$                       2,000$                        50$                             1,000$                    

50711 · ARFF Training 2,000$                    1,428$                    2,000$                    4,181$                       2,000$                        1,400$                    2,000$                        829$                           1,600$                    

50712 · ARFF Truck Repair 5,000$                    5,215$                    6,000$                    5,240$                       6,000$                        6,095$                    6,000$                        15,322$                      6,000$                    

50713 · ARFF Uniforms 2,000$                    6,847$                    1,500$                    1,218$                       2,000$                        867$                       2,000$                        433$                           1,500$                    

50714 · ARFF Utilities 12,000$                  18,489$                  14,000$                  14,729$                     12,000$                      16,408$                  12,000$                      12,389$                      15,000$                  

50715 · ARFF Workers Comp. 5,000$                    4,230$                    6,000$                    4,230$                       5,000$                        4,243$                    5,000$                        4,641$                        5,000$                    

50716 · Public Safety Building 8,000$                    4,225$                    10,000$                  11,696$                     20,000$                      7,579$                    20,000$                      7,896$                        8,000$                    

50717 · ARFF Misc. 250$                       745$                       800$                       863$                          800$                           102$                       800$                           97$                             800$                       

50718 - ARFF Longevity 7,000$                    8,320$                    9,000$                    8,640$                       9,000$                        9,280$                    9,000$                        9,280$                        10,560$                  

Total 50700 · ARFF Expenses 225,650$                267,912$                257,400$                259,754$                   279,100$                    278,649$                304,394$                    289,642$                    328,278$                

50800 · LEO Expenses

50730 · LEO Payroll 82,000$                  83,392$                  82,000$                  64,495$                     83,000$                      86,284$                  88,266$                      99,942$                      115,284$                Payscale study 

50731 · LEO Office Support 500$                       100$                       200$                       -$                           200$                           374$                       200$                           114$                           400$                       

50732 · LEO Communications 1,000$                    705$                       500$                       641$                          500$                           566$                       500$                           502$                           600$                       

50733 · LEO Misc. 50$                         -$                           50$                         -$                           50$                             50$                             -$                                50$                         

50734 · LEO Workers Comp. 2,000$                    1,149$                    2,700$                    1,149$                       2,700$                        1,119$                    2,700$                        1,117$                        1,500$                    

50735 · LEO Training & Equipment -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           32,633$                      -$                       25,121$                      -$                                25,121$                  

50736 · LEO Longevity -$                            -$                           -$                            -$                           -$                                -$                       -$                                -$                                5,280$                    

Total 50800 · LEO Expenses 85,550$                  85,346$                  85,450$                  66,285$                     119,083$                    88,343$                  116,837$                    101,675$                    148,235$                

Total Expense 1,191,950$             1,314,758$             1,213,700$             1,177,123$                1,342,283$                 1,414,568$             1,509,756$                 1,604,578$                 1,884,894$             

Revenues - Expenditures (128,580)$        (55,513)$          (128,280)$        (147,123)$          (249,413)$           30,981$           (408,361)$           (334,007)$           (680,849)$        

O&M Cost Shares FY18 Budget Actual FY19 Budget Actual FY20 Budget Actual FY21 Budget FY21 Budget FY22 Budget

Texarkana, TX 92,150$            70,410$            70,246$            86,867$               136,579$              166,744$          223,618$              182,902$              375,761$          

Texarkana, AR 76,130$            58,170$            58,034$            58,034$               112,834$              107,638$          184,743$              151,105$              305,088$          

True balance 809.67$            

New Terminal/Taxiway 256,369.00$    122,820.60$    93,871.00$      67,356.08$         912,520.00$        902,194.00$        902,194.00$        

*(See Attached Sheet) -$                   -$                   73,756.00$      -$                      716,980.00$        708,867.00$        708,867.00$        

Total Local Match 256,369.00$    167,627.00$    1,629,500.00$    1,611,061.00$    1,611,061.00$    -$                   

CARES Act Funding 463,290.00$    651,535.00$       503,168.00$        580,027.00$    665,000$              703,442$              788,452$          

Population Ratio 2022

54.76% 55.19%

45.24% 44.81%



Discretionary

2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 2 QTR EOY Est 2023 Budget 2023 Budget

Income

40000 · Revenues

40001 · Small Building Revenue 9,000$                   11,943$                 11,000$                 8,835$                      43,500$                     9,750$                   42,825$                     21,803$                     43,605$                   42,825$                 42,825$                 

40002 · FBO Revenue 102,000$               104,240$               102,000$               102,586$                  104,000$                   104,353$               115,000$                   51,677$                     103,354$                 116,150$               116,150$               

40003 · Ground Revenue/Aircraft Sto Fee 25,500$                 24,317$                 25,500$                 25,799$                    25,000$                     42,233$                 48,400$                     12,905$                     25,810$                   48,400$                 48,400$                 

40004 · Hangar Revenue 95,000$                 99,607$                 95,750$                 101,367$                  98,000$                     106,992$               145,200$                   81,060$                     162,120$                 163,200$               163,200$               

40005 · House Revenue 25,000$                 24,600$                 24,300$                 42,500$                    28,000$                     47,100$                 57,600$                     29,400$                     58,800$                   57,600$                 57,600$                 

40006 · Fuel Flowage Revenue 62,000$                 53,832$                 62,000$                 40,297$                    50,000$                     46,372$                 50,000$                     22,992$                     45,984$                   51,000$                 51,000$                 

40007 · Interest/Late Charge Revenue 500$                      -$                           500$                      -$                          -$                               -$                               -$                             -$                           -$                           

40008 · Landing Fees Revenue 40,000$                 46,030$                 40,000$                 36,010$                    48,000$                     65,065$                 56,000$                     29,949$                     59,898$                   56,000$                 56,000$                 

40009 · Misc. Revenue - Other 5,000$                   5,970$                   5,000$                   3,501$                      4,000$                       58,099$                 5,000$                       8,979$                       8,979$                     5,000$                   5,000$                   

40010 · Parking Revenue 255,000$               312,960$               275,000$               110,523$                  275,000$                   217,759$               190,000$                   129,314$                   258,628$                 260,000$               260,000$               

40011 · Airline Office Revenue 35,370$                 35,370$                 35,370$                 35,370$                    35,370$                     35,370$                 35,370$                     17,685$                     35,370$                   35,370$                 35,370$                 

40012 · Rental Car Revenue 250,000$               242,003$               250,000$               224,130$                  225,000$                   278,669$               234,000$                   122,719$                   245,438$                 250,000$               250,000$               

40013 · TSA Building Rents - Other 54,000$                 50,794$                 54,000$                 50,910$                    50,000$                     51,111$                 50,000$                     25,708$                     51,416$                   50,000$                 50,000$                 

40015 · Fuel Tax Income 35,000$                 39,545$                 37,000$                 28,076$                    35,000$                     33,566$                 30,000$                     25,200$                     25,200$                   32,000$                 32,000$                 

40016 · Cities Subsidy 128,580$               144,822$                  274,382$               -$                             -$                           -$                           

40017 · Advertising Revenue 4,000$                   6,312$                   4,000$                   12,896$                    4,000$                       5,001$                   12,000$                     3,435$                       6,870$                     6,500$                   6,500$                   

40018 · Mooring Fee -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                          -$                               -$                               -$                             -$                           -$                           

40019 · LEO Grant Reimbursement 41,000$                 43,800$                 39,000$                 32,200$                    39,000$                     38,720$                 -$                               24,120$                     24,120$                   -$                           -$                           

40020 · Miller County Tax Passthru 25,000$                 25,430$                 25,000$                 25,430$                    25,000$                     27,885$                 26,000$                     30,010$                     30,010$                   26,000$                 26,000$                 

40021 · Freight Loading Charges -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                          -$                               -$                               -$                             -$                           -$                           

40022 · Building Utilities -$                           3,913$                   -$                           4,748$                      4,000$                       3,122$                   4,000$                       468$                          936$                        4,000$                   4,000$                   

Total 40000 · Revenues 1,063,370$            1,259,245$            1,085,420$            1,030,000$               1,092,870$                1,445,549$            1,101,395$                637,424$                   1,186,538$              1,204,045$            1,204,045$            58%

Expense

50000 · Administration Expense

50001 · Advertising & Promotion 2,000$                   6,959$                   2,000$                   2,811$                      14,000$                     20,971$                 14,000$                     17,211$                     34,422$                   25,000$                 100,000$               75000 -website

50002 · Drug Testing 350$                      168$                      350$                      653$                         600$                          504$                      400$                          168$                          336$                        400$                      400$                      

50003 · Dues & Subscriptions 3,500$                   5,120$                   5,000$                   6,098$                      5,000$                       7,033$                   6,200$                       1,714$                       3,428$                     3,500$                   3,500$                   Eliminate - Chamber dues

50004 · Employee Training-Other 3,000$                   7,415$                   5,000$                   3,395$                      3,000$                       2,350$                   4,000$                       3,245$                       6,490$                     2,000$                   2,000$                   

50005 · Interest Expense/Debt Service 8,000$                   5,050$                   3,500$                   15,269$                    8,000$                       37,975$                 8,000$                       15,065$                     30,130$                   60,000$                 60,000$                 

50006 · Legal & Accounting Expense 14,000$                 21,942$                 20,000$                 13,674$                    20,000$                     31,883$                 50,000$                     7,242$                       14,484$                   30,000$                 30,000$                 

50008 · Mileage 5,000$                   2,483$                   4,000$                   1,030$                      2,500$                       335$                      2,500$                       456$                          912$                        1,000$                   1,000$                   

50009 · Office Support 7,000$                   6,261$                   7,000$                   5,629$                      7,000$                       8,840$                   7,000$                       4,244$                       8,488$                     7,000$                   7,000$                   

50010 · Miscellaneous 10,000$                 16,518$                 10,000$                 8,879$                      10,000$                     4,301$                   10,000$                     3,178$                       6,356$                     10,000$                 10,000$                 

50011 · Parking Expense 4,000$                   1,284$                   2,000$                   6,836$                      1,300$                       3,007$                   6,000$                       448$                          896$                        5,000$                   5,000$                   

50012 · Service Charges 5,500$                   12,901$                 10,000$                 6,588$                      12,000$                     9,802$                   12,000$                     5,245$                       10,490$                   10,000$                 10,000$                 

50013 · Travel & Training Seminars 4,000$                   2,918$                   4,000$                   3,559$                      3,000$                       6,822$                   3,000$                       4,740$                       9,480$                     3,000$                   3,000$                   

50014 · Consulting Fees -$                           -$                           500$                      3,640$                      6,000$                       4,000$                   6,000$                       -$                               -$                             4,000$                   4,000$                   

50015 · FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 1,000$                   371$                      1,000$                   1,178$                      1,000$                       -$                       1,000$                       -$                               -$                             1,000$                   1,000$                   

50022 · Depredation -$                           3,152$                   -$                           925$                         500$                          200$                      1,000$                       -$                               -$                             500$                      500$                      

50023 · Terminal Vending -$                           2,847$                      -$                               1,089$                   2,500$                       180$                          360$                        1,800$                   1,800$                   

Total 50000 · Administration Expense 67,350$                 92,542$                 74,350$                 83,011$                    93,900$                     139,111$               133,600$                   63,136$                     126,272$                 164,200$               239,200$               47%

50100 · Liability Insurance Expense

50101 · APERMA 32,000$                 32,000$                 32,000$                 14,560$                    -$                               -$                               -$                           -$                           

50102 · Airport Liability Ins. Other 6,000$                   6,000$                   6,000$                   8,300$                      8,000$                       8,300$                   8,400$                       8,300$                     8,400$                   8,400$                   

50103 · Property/Auto Ins -$                           46,878$                    50,000$                     48,350$                 50,000$                     51,922$                   50,000$                 50,000$                 

Total 50100 · Liability Insurance Expense 38,000$                 38,000$                 38,000$                 69,738$                    58,000$                     56,650$                 58,400$                     -$                               60,222$                   58,400$                 58,400$                 0%

50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense

50201 - Electrical Components 10,000$                 10,000$                 

50202 · Airside Components 20,000$                 19,419$                 14,000$                 5,421$                      20,000$                     16,970$                 20,000$                     13,318$                     26,636$                   10,000$                 10,000$                 

50203 · Buildings 25,000$                 16,781$                 25,000$                 28,517$                    25,000$                     22,482$                 25,000$                     15,977$                     31,954$                   30,000$                 30,000$                 

50205 · Gates / Fences 7,000$                   2,933$                   7,000$                   5,906$                      15,000$                     4,958$                   15,000$                     6,960$                       13,920$                   45,000$                 45,000$                 Repair area by East Heights - 30k

50206 · Houses 10,000$                 38,425$                 10,000$                 5,833$                      15,000$                     16,692$                 15,000$                     1,725$                       3,450$                     10,000$                 30,000$                 Tear down house - 20K

50207 · Misc. 1,000$                   808$                      1,000$                   183$                         1,000$                       1,537$                   1,000$                       476$                          952$                        1,000$                   1,000$                   

50208 · T-Hangars 6,500$                   1,781$                   6,500$                   10,619$                    36,000$                     21,133$                 36,000$                     20,209$                     40,418$                   10,000$                 51,400$                 Upgrades to T-Hangars - 41.4k

50209 · Tools 1,000$                   2,315$                   1,000$                   1,121$                      1,000$                       4,578$                   1,000$                       300$                          600$                        1,000$                   19,500$                 Crack sealer, painter $18,500

50210 · Tractors, Mules, Forklift etc. 12,000$                 11,201$                 12,000$                 4,903$                      12,000$                     6,648$                   12,000$                     12,538$                     25,076$                   12,000$                 30,200$                 Zero Turn -18.2K

50211 · Vehicles & Trailers 3,000$                   1,400$                   3,500$                   1,543$                      3,000$                       8,422$                   3,000$                       3,963$                       7,926$                     4,000$                   30,000$                 New Truck - 25K

50212 · Environmental 1,000$                   75$                        500$                      233$                         500$                          8,564$                   500$                          -$                               -$                             500$                      500$                      

50213 · Snow & Ice Removal/ Flood Damage 2,500$                   -$                           2,500$                   -$                          2,500$                       6,890$                   2,500$                       -$                               -$                             2,000$                   2,000$                   

50214 - FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 2,958$                   3,115$                       6,230$                     4,000$                   4,000$                   

Total 50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense 89,000$                 95,138$                 83,000$                 64,279$                    131,000$                   121,830$               131,000$                   78,581$                     157,162$                 139,500$               263,600$               60%

50300 · Landside Consumables Expense

50301 · Fuel 11,000$                 6,299$                   10,000$                 4,842$                      10,000$                     8,840$                   8,000$                       4,377$                       8,754$                     8,000$                   8,000$                   

50302 · Janitorial Supplies 4,700$                   4,921$                   4,700$                   4,084$                      5,000$                       4,099$                   5,000$                       2,572$                       5,144$                     5,000$                   5,000$                   

50303 · Landscaping 3,000$                   -$                           2,000$                   -$                          3,000$                       1,290$                   1,000$                       -$                               -$                             1,000$                   1,000$                   

50304 · Maint. Shop Supplies 3,000$                   1,613$                   2,000$                   2,299$                      2,000$                       2,540$                   2,000$                       1,208$                       2,416$                     2,000$                   2,000$                   

50305 · Rental Expense 1,200$                   457$                      1,200$                   244$                         1,200$                       570$                      1,200$                       -$                             1,000$                   1,000$                   

50306 · Uniforms 1,600$                   2,275$                   1,600$                   1,467$                      1,600$                       1,867$                   1,400$                       210$                          420$                        1,200$                   1,200$                   

Total 50300 · Landside Consumables Expense 24,500$                 15,565$                 21,500$                 12,936$                    22,800$                     19,205$                 18,600$                     8,367$                       16,734$                   18,200$                 18,200$                 45%

50400 · Payroll Expenses

50401 · AR Unemployment Tax (ALL) 4,000$                   5,855$                   4,000$                   988$                         4,000$                       512$                      4,000$                       -$                             4,000$                   4,000$                   

50402 · Admin. Group Insurance 50,000$                 46,305$                 48,000$                 37,177$                    50,000$                     44,475$                 50,000$                     17,487$                     34,974$                   50,000$                 50,000$                 

50403 · Payroll Taxes (ALL) 46,500$                 50,659$                 46,500$                 44,258$                    46,500$                     50,755$                 48,360$                     27,920$                     55,840$                   48,360$                 48,360$                 

50404 · Admin. Retirement 3,600$                   4,249$                   4,000$                   5,696$                      4,300$                       5,893$                   47,000$                     45,858$                     91,716$                   99,604$                 99,604$                 

50405 · Admin. Payroll 386,000$               371,540$               386,000$               328,118$                  360,000$                   369,628$               401,440$                   215,473$                   430,946$                 468,007$               468,007$               

50406 · Admin. Workers Comp. 3,500$                   2,342$                   5,000$                   2,342$                      5,000$                       2,498$                   5,000$                       2,263$                       4,526$                     5,000$                   5,000$                   

50408 · Vacation & Sick Leave 39,378$                 27,430$                    -$                               35,795$                 -$                               12,380$                     24,760$                   -$                           -$                           

50409 · Other (ALL) 800$                      604$                      300$                      342$                         300$                          116$                      300$                          862$                          1,724$                     300$                      300$                      

50411 · Accrued Payroll 8,500$                   -$                           10,000$                 -$                          10,000$                     10,000$                     -$                             8,500$                   8,500$                   

50413 · Admin. Longevity 9,120$                   11,000$                 7,520$                      8,000$                       8,800$                   9,000$                       -$                             10,880$                 10,880$                 

50415 · ADA Employee Agreement -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                          -$                               -$                               -$                             -$                           -$                           

50400 · Admin Payroll Expenses Other -$                           100$                      -$                          100$                          100$                          19,408$                     38,816$                   100$                      100$                      

Total 50400 · Payroll Expenses 502,900$               530,052$               514,900$               453,871$                  488,200$                   518,471$               575,200$                   341,651$                   683,302$                 694,751$               694,751$               59%

50500 · Permits & Taxes

50501 · Miller County Taxes 32,000$                 37,375$                 12,000$                 37,643$                    12,000$                     39,310$                 38,000$                     42,116$                     42,116$                   40,000$                 40,000$                 

50502 · Sales Tax 25,000$                 31,437$                 30,000$                 11,106$                    27,500$                     19,485$                 27,500$                     6,879$                       27,516$                   27,500$                 27,500$                 

50503 · Permits & Taxes -Other -$                           720$                      100$                      700$                         700$                          700$                      725$                          -$                             725$                      725$                      

Total 50500 · Permits & Taxes 57,000$                 69,532$                 42,100$                 49,449$                    40,200$                     59,495$                 66,225$                     48,995$                     69,632$                   68,225$                 68,225$                 74%

50600 · Utilities

50602 · Communications 26,000$                 37,969$                 18,000$                 26,883$                    25,000$                     34,977$                 25,000$                     16,295$                     32,590$                   34,000$                 34,000$                 

50603 · Electricity 62,000$                 62,712$                 65,000$                 72,592$                    65,000$                     77,547$                 65,000$                     37,701$                     75,402$                   75,000$                 75,000$                 

50604 · Gas 4,000$                   3,620$                   4,000$                   3,273$                      4,000$                       3,416$                   3,500$                       3,181$                       6,362$                     3,500$                   3,500$                   

50605 · Water 10,000$                 16,369$                 10,000$                 15,051$                    16,000$                     16,873$                 12,000$                     6,524$                       13,048$                   16,000$                 16,000$                 

Total 50600 · Utilities 102,000$               120,670$               97,000$                 117,799$                  110,000$                   132,813$               105,500$                   63,701$                     127,402$                 128,500$               128,500$               60%

50700 · ARFF Expenses

50702 · ARFF Office Support 500$                      63$                        300$                      248$                         300$                          218$                      300$                          709$                          1,418$                     300$                      300$                      

50703 · ARFF Communications 2,000$                   3,680$                   2,000$                   1,765$                      2,000$                       2,014$                   2,000$                       757$                          1,514$                     1,800$                   1,800$                   

50704 · ARFF Fuel 3,000$                   3,465$                   3,000$                   2,962$                      3,000$                       1,350$                   3,000$                       2,099$                       4,198$                     2,500$                   2,500$                   

50705 · ARFF Group Insurance 23,000$                 36,504$                 32,500$                 36,005$                    36,000$                     44,097$                 36,000$                     15,057$                     30,114$                   42,000$                 42,000$                 

50706 · ARFF Mileage 500$                      821$                      1,000$                   987$                         1,000$                       663$                      1,000$                       770$                          1,540$                     1,000$                   1,000$                   

50707 · ARFF Payroll 147,000$               165,034$               162,000$               160,446$                  170,000$                   177,173$               175,294$                   97,495$                     194,990$                 211,759$               211,759$               

50708 · ARFF Retirement 2,400$                   4,208$                   3,800$                   3,763$                      4,000$                       3,678$                   24,000$                     -$                               -$                             -$                           -$                           

50709 · ARFF Supplies 4,000$                   4,412$                   1,500$                   1,748$                      4,000$                       3,273$                   4,000$                       978$                          1,956$                     3,400$                   3,400$                   

50710 · ARFF Tools & Equipment 2,000$                   226$                      2,000$                   1,033$                      2,000$                       212$                      2,000$                       -$                               -$                             1,000$                   1,000$                   

50711 · ARFF Training 2,000$                   1,428$                   2,000$                   4,181$                      2,000$                       1,400$                   2,000$                       1,529$                       3,058$                     1,600$                   1,600$                   

50712 · ARFF Truck Repair 5,000$                   5,215$                   6,000$                   5,240$                      6,000$                       6,095$                   6,000$                       10,190$                     20,380$                   6,000$                   6,000$                   

50713 · ARFF Uniforms 2,000$                   6,847$                   1,500$                   1,218$                      2,000$                       867$                      2,000$                       -$                               -$                             1,500$                   1,500$                   

50714 · ARFF Utilities 12,000$                 18,489$                 14,000$                 14,729$                    12,000$                     16,408$                 12,000$                     4,501$                       9,002$                     15,000$                 15,000$                 

50715 · ARFF Workers Comp. 5,000$                   4,230$                   6,000$                   4,230$                      5,000$                       4,243$                   5,000$                       4,641$                       9,282$                     5,000$                   5,000$                   

50716 · Public Safety Building 8,000$                   4,225$                   10,000$                 11,696$                    20,000$                     7,579$                   20,000$                     3,415$                       6,830$                     8,000$                   8,000$                   

50717 · ARFF Misc. 250$                      745$                      800$                      863$                         800$                          102$                      800$                          64$                            128$                        800$                      800$                      

50718 - ARFF Longevity 7,000$                   8,320$                   9,000$                   8,640$                      9,000$                       9,280$                   9,000$                       -$                             10,560$                 10,560$                 

Total 50700 · ARFF Expenses 225,650$               267,912$               257,400$               259,754$                  279,100$                   278,649$               304,394$                   142,205$                   284,410$                 312,219$               312,219$               47%

50800 · LEO Expenses

50730 · LEO Payroll 82,000$                 83,392$                 82,000$                 64,495$                    83,000$                     86,284$                 88,266$                     51,957$                     103,914$                 109,000$               109,000$               

50731 · LEO Office Support 500$                      100$                      200$                      -$                          200$                          374$                      200$                          198$                          396$                        400$                      400$                      

50732 · LEO Communications 1,000$                   705$                      500$                      641$                         500$                          566$                      500$                          -$                               -$                             600$                      600$                      

50733 · LEO Misc. 50$                        -$                           50$                        -$                          50$                            50$                            -$                               -$                             50$                        50$                        

50734 · LEO Workers Comp. 2,000$                   1,149$                   2,700$                   1,149$                      2,700$                       1,119$                   2,700$                       1,117$                       2,234$                     1,500$                   1,500$                   

50735 · LEO Training & Equipment -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                          32,633$                     -$                       25,121$                     -$                             25,121$                 25,121$                 

Total 50800 · LEO Expenses 85,550$                 85,346$                 85,450$                 66,285$                    119,083$                   88,343$                 116,837$                   53,272$                     106,544$                 136,671$               136,671$               46%

Total Expense 1,191,950$            1,314,758$            1,213,700$            1,177,123$               1,342,283$                1,414,568$            1,509,756$                799,908$                   1,631,680$              1,720,666$            1,919,766$            53%

Revenues - Expenditures (128,580)$        (55,513)$          (128,280)$        (147,123)$           (249,413)$           30,981$           (408,361)$           (162,485)$           (445,142)$          (516,621)$        (715,721)$        -301361 (107,000)$   

O&M Cost Shares FY18 Budget Actual FY19 Budget Actual FY20 Budget Actual FY21 Budget FY21 Budget FY22 Budget FY22 Budget

Texarkana, TX 92,150$            70,410$            70,246$            86,867$               136,579$              166,744$          223,618$              88,977$                282,902$          391,929$          

Texarkana, AR 76,130$            58,170$            58,034$            58,034$               112,834$              107,638$          184,743$              73,508$                233,719$          323,792$          

True balance 809.67$            

New Terminal/Taxiway 256,369.00$    122,820.60$    93,871.00$       67,356.08$         912,520.00$        902,194.00$        902,194.00$        

*(See Attached Sheet) -$                   -$                   73,756.00$       -$                     716,980.00$        708,867.00$        708,867.00$        

Total Local Match 256,369.00$    167,627.00$    1,629,500.00$     1,611,061.00$     1,611,061.00$     -$                  -$                  

CARES Act Funding 463,290.00$    651,535.00$       503,168.00$        580,027.00$    665,000$              364,925$              788,766$          788,766$          

Population Ratio

54.76%

45.24%



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 26-2022, for the 

prerequisite municipal approval of a private club application on behalf 

of David Peavy for the 1923 Banana Club located at 105 Olive Street. 

(CCD) 

An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board 

and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: September 19, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Amending Ordinance No. 26-2022, for the prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application to continue the application process 

through the State. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: Applicant is requesting an amendment to Ordinance No. 26-2022, for 

the prerequisite approval to continue the application process through the 

State.   

Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, all new private club applications must be 

submitted with an ordinance from the governing body of the county or 

municipality in which the private club wishes to be located, approving 

the application. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance  

 



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

26-2022 AND GRANTING THE REQUEST FOR 

PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL OF A 

PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY DAVID 

PEAVY, AS APPLICANT, ON BEHALF OF 

HERITAGE, HEART & ARTS, D/B/A THE 1923 

BANANA CLUB; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in 

accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to 

submittal of certain applications to the ABC or its Director relating to private clubs, request has 

been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the application 

of David Peavy as applicant on behalf of Heritage, Heart & Arts, d/b/a the 1923 Banana Club; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that:   

Section 1.  The request of David Peavy on behalf of Heritage, Heart & Arts, d/b/a the 1923 

Banana Club, for prerequisite municipal approval of an application for a private club at 105 Olive 

Street, Texarkana, Arkansas, 71854, as required by Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules and 

Regulations of the ABC is hereby granted.  

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of 

any business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state, 

or federal law, rule or regulation, now or hereafter adopted.  

Section 3.   This Order hereby amends Ordinance No. 26-2022 and, to the extent any 

conflict exists between the two, his Ordinance controls. 

Section 4.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency 



is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of September, 2022. 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

     

                            

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

      

George Matteson, City Attorney 
 






	Top
	1.	IT Day Proclamation
	item_09192022_ccd_IT day proclamation

	2.	Personnel/Human Resources Day Proclamation
	item_09192022_ccd_Personnel_Human Resources Day

	3.	PWD presentation
	item_3_09192022_pw_presentation

	4.	twu budget presentation
	item_4_09192022_twu_budget presentation
	item_4_09192022_twu_AR Budget Presentation FY23

	5.	airport budget presentation
	item_5_09192022_airport budget presentation
	item_5_09192022_airport_Budget Presentation AR - Sep 2022

	6.	minutes
	item_09192022_ccd_minutes
	item_6_09062022_minutes

	7.	grant application for ARPA Funding for Nix Creek Water Quality Improvements to the Arkansas Natural Resources  Commission
	item_5_09192022_pwd_Arkansas Natural Resources Commission
	item_7_09192022_resolution_ARPA for Funding
	Water Wastewater Needs Survey

	8.	TWU Budget
	item_09192022_twu_adopt budget
	item_8_09192022_resolution_TWU Budget
	item_8_09192022_TWU AR Budget 2022-2023 zip

	9.	Airport Budget
	item_9_09192022_airport_Agenda Form - Budget - Arkansas
	item_9_09192022_resolution_Airport Budget
	item_09192022_airport_Briefing Sheet Info_Airport Budget
	item_09192022_airport_2023 Budget

	10.	Amend Ordinance for David Peavy
	item_9_09192022_ccd_banana club
	item_10_09192022_ordinance_1923 Banana Club
	item_09192022_bod_26-2022

	Bottom

